
  

   Email: casey@cgeconsulting.ca |Phone:  416-602-1885 | 
 

 
May 30, 2022 
 
174 Dinnick Crescent 
Toronto Ontario M4N 1M3 
 
Attention: Mr. Sam Arabi 
   
Re: Transportation Study 

179-181 Toronto Street South 
Proposed Townhouse development 
Town of Uxbridge, Durham Region 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

CGE Transportation Consulting was retained by LARKIN+ land use planners inc. to 
prepare a Transportation Study for a proposed residential development, located at 179-
181 Toronto Street South, in the Town of Uxbridge, Durham Region.  

The location of the proposed development is illustrated in Figure 1.  

The proposed development comprises of two residential buildings each consisting of five 
3-storey townhouses for a total of ten dwellings units. Vehicular access to the 
development will be accommodated via a full-movement laneway connection to Toronto 
Street South. The site plan shows a total parking supply of 25 spaces. Twenty spaces are 
located within the car garage or on the driveway. Five additional spaces are located on 
public driveway including one HC space.  

The proposed site plan is provided in Figure 2.   
 
Toronto Street South (Highway 47) is a ‘Type B’ arterial road that is under the jurisdictional 
control of Durham Region. It has a posted speed limit of 60 km/hour and serves as one 
of the main corridors in Uxbridge. There is a center left lane on Toronto Street South, in 
the vicinity of the study area.  
 
Due to the small development scale, it is not anticipated that traffic impact will be 
significant to the adjacent street. The proposed parking supply of 25 spaces also meet 
the Town’s requirements.  
 
The key focus of the transportation study will be on-site circulation and access review, as 
well as sight line distance review.  
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Figure 1 Site Location 

 
Source: Google Maps  
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Figure 2 Site Plan  
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2.0 SITE TRAFFIC PROJECTION 

2.1 ITE Trip Generation 

The projection of new additional traffic volumes generated by the development proposal 
is estimated based on the Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition published by the Institute 
of Transportation Engineers (ITE) for “Multi-Family (Low-Rise)” (LUC 220).  

Table 1 summarizes the total site trip generation for the proposed development. The 
graph/calculations can be found in the appendices.  

Table 1 Site Trip Generation  

Based on the foregoing, the development proposal is anticipated to generate 5 two-way 
trips during the weekday morning peak hour and 8 two-way trips during the afternoon 
peak hour. There will be negligible impact to the surrounding streets. Additionally, the 
anticipated volumes do not meet the thresholds for a right-turn lane from Toronto Street 
South to service the proposed site.  

The key focus of this transportation study will be to determine if there are adequate and 
efficient on-site circulation to accommodate passenger cars.  

3.0 ON-SITE CIRCULATION & SITE ACCESS 

A functional design review was completed using a typical SUV (5.1 meters in length) to 
ensure adequate maneuverability for the parallel visitor parking spaces. The swept path 
diagrams are shown in Figure 3.   
 
Based on the swept path diagrams, typical passenger vehicles are able to effectively 
access, circulate and complete required activities on-site.  

All garbage pick-up and fire truck activities will stay on Toronto Street.   

Land Use 
Weekday AM 

Peak Hour 
Weekday PM 

Peak Hour 
In Out Total In Out Total 

10 residential units Trips 1 4 5 5 3 8 
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Figure 3 Vehicular AutoTURN Path  

 
The subject site will be serviced by a full movement access laneway connection to 
Toronto Street South. This access will have an inbound lane and an outbound lane. It is 
noted that the proposed access location is an existing access to the subject site. 
 
As the site plan is conceptual and does not yet include detailed design of the proposed 
road, the following table reiterate the requirements necessary to meet Durham Region’s 
Design Specifications for Roads and Entranceways in urban areas as well as the Durham 
Region Official Plan.  
 
Table 1 Site Access Design Requirements 
 
Design Element Required Design Criteria 

Dimensions 
Proposed Dimensions 

Entrance Width  Min: 3.5 m Meets Requirements 
Max: 7.5 (2 lane) 

Curb Radii 1.0 m approaching and 1.5 
departing flare in addition to 
entrance width 

Not Shown 

Minimum Spacing Between driveways: 7.5 m Meets Requirements 
Between private 
access/minor intersection: 
80 m  

Does not meet 
requirements 
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Toronto Steet South is designated as a Type B arterial which, according to the Durham 
Region Official Plan Schedule E – Table E7, requires a minimum of 80-metre spacing 
between private accesses / minor intersections in urban areas. The proposed access is 
less than 80 m from the adjacent minor intersection at Fred Barnard Way. However, it is 
noted that the driveway is currently existing at full build conditions, two-way peak hour 
trips at this access will not exceed 8 vehicles.   
 

4.0 SIGHT LINE DISTANCES 
There are two terminologies that we should consider for the sight distances: 1) Stopping 
Sight Distance and 2) Decision Sight Distance or Intersection Sight Distance.  

In simple terms, the stopping sight distance is the minimum distance that a vehicle can 
stop safely should an incident occur and decision sight distances gives drivers extra 
reaction time to make a stop at a comfortable pace should something happens 
unexpectedly. Decision sight distance is always desirable but stopping sight distance is 
adequate for safe maneuvers.  

The posted speed on Toronto Street South is 60 km/hour and the design speed is 
assumed to be 80 km/hour to be conservative.  

The following table 9.9.4 from the Geometric Design Guide indicates that the stopping 
sight distance for a 80km/hour design speed is 130 meters. The design intersection 
sight distance for passenger cars is 170 meters.  

 

Table 2 below summarized the minimum sightline requirements and the proposed 
sightline distance. 

Table 2 Sightline Distance Review 

Intersection 
Speed Sightline 

Posted Design Required 
Provided 

North South 
Toronto St South 

& Site Access 
60 km/h 80 km/h 130 250 m >250 m 
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Toronto Street is flat vertically and generally flat horizontally for this section of the 
roadway. There is a slight curve to the north of the side, but it is approximately 230 meters 
away from the proposed site accesses.  

To the south, the sight line meets the intersection of Toronto Street South and Elgin Park 
Drive at approximately 250 meters. This intersection is stop controlled. There are existing 
site accesses to properties that are located within closer proximity to the Toronto / Elgin 
Park intersection. It is determined that adequate sight distances are available in both 
northbound and southbound direction.  

5.0 CONCLUSIONS 

The key findings are summarized below: 

 It is expected that the nominal traffic generated by the development proposal 
can be accommodated by the existing road network and no mitigation measure 
is required. 

 Parking supply is adequate to support the expected parking demand generated 
by the development proposal and it meets the zoning by-law parking 
requirements. 

 There are adequate sight line distances on Toronto Street South in both the 
northbound and southbound direction.  

 The access spacing to the adjacent intersection at Fred Barnard Way does not 
meet the Region’s minimum 80 m spacing requirements for Type‐B arterial 
roads. However, this access is presently existing and at full build conditions, 
two-way peak hour trips at this access will not exceed 8 vehicles.   

Should you have any questions regarding this study, please do not hesitate to contact the 
undersigned.  

Yours truly, 

CGE TRANSPORTATION CONSULTING 

 
Casey Ge, P.Eng. 
President 
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Appendix A:  
                   ITE Trip Generation Reports (Proposed Multi-Family: Low Rise Use)  
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